
LOWER MANHATTAN  DEVELO PMEN T CORPORATIO N

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIO N S:
Mem orial Com petition Developm ent Consultant
The Lower Manhattan Developm ent Corporation, a subsidiary of

the New York State Urban Developm ent Corporation
d/b/a Em pire State Developm ent Corporation,

seeks Statem ents of Qualifications for m em orial com petition
d evelopm ent consultant services relating to the creation of a
m em orial at the W orld Tra d e Center site to the events of

Septem ber 11, 2001.

Lower Manhattan Developm ent Corporation
John W hitehe a d , Chairm an
Louis R. Tom son, Presid ent

Dec em b er 16, 2002

Dead line for responses: January 6, 2003, 5:00 PM (EST)

Questions m ust b e sub m itte d  in writing  to John Hatfield , Assistant Vice Presid e nt,
Mem orial, Cultural & Civic Prog ra m s, no later than Dec em b er 20, 2002.  Ad d end a to
this RFQ, includ ing  responses to any questions, will b e poste d  on the LMDC we b site

www.renewnyc.org b y Dec em b er 27, 2002.  LMDC will not ac c ept questions via any other
m ethod s.
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1. GENERAL IN FORMATIO N

The Lower M anhattan Developm ent Corporation (“LMDC”) was esta b lishe d  in the fall of 2001
to red evelop and  revitalize Lower Manhattan in the a fterm ath of Septem b er 11, 2001.  LMDC is
a subsid iary of the N ew York State Urb a n Developm ent Corporation, d oing  b usiness as Em pire
State Developm ent Corporation (“ESDC”), a political sub d ivision and  pub lic b enefit
corporation of the State of N ew York, cre ate d  b y Chapter 24 of the Laws of N ew York, 1968, as
a m e nd e d .  LMDC is g overne d  b y a sixteen m em b er Board  of Directors, eig ht of whom  were
nom inate d  b y the Governor of the State of N ew York and  eig ht of whom  were nom inate d  the
M ayor of the City of N ew York.  LMDC is fund e d  b y fe d eral appropriations a d m inistere d  b y
the Unite d  States Departm ent of Housing a nd  Urb a n Developm ent (“HUD”) throug h its
Com m unity Developm ent Block Grant (“CDBG”) prog ra m .  To d a te, approxim ately $2.7 billion
has b e e n alloc ate d  to LMDC und er such appropriations.

In fulfilling  its responsibility of cre ating  a m em orial at the World  Tra d e Center site, LMDC will
ne e d  the services of a consulting  firm  to d evelop com petition g uid elines and  coord inate the
review process of sub m issions.

Firm s intereste d  in sub m itting  their Statem ents of Qualific ations to provid e such services are
requeste d  to follow the recom m end e d  g uid elines and  instructions containe d  in this Request for
Qualific ations (“RFQ”).  In the event it b e com es necessary to revise any part of this RFQ,
revisions will b e provid e d  b y a d d end um  posted  on the LMDC we b site: www.renewnyc.org .

Firm s m ay propose to provid e one or m ore c ate g ories of services.  Statem ents of Qualific ations
should  provid e a straig htforward  and  concise d escription of the respond ent’s capa b ilities to
satisfy the requirem ents of the RFQ.  Em phasis should  b e on the com pleteness and  clarity of
content.  Each copy of the Statem ent of Qualific ations should  b e  b ound  in a sing le volum e and
includ e any d ocum entation you m ay wish to sub m it.

LMDC reserves the rig ht to reject any or all Statem ents of Qualific ations sub m itted  in response
to this RFQ.  LMDC assum es no ob lig a tion, no responsib ility and  no lia b ility for costs incurred
b y the firm  prior to the issuance of a contract.

If you respond  to this RFQ, ple ase prepare seven (7) copies of your Statem ent of Qualific ations
and  work sa mples and  d eliver them  to:

John Hatfield , Assistant Vice Presid ent
Prog ra m M a na g er for Mem orial, Cultural & Civic Prog ra ms
Lower M anhattan Developm ent Corporation
One Lib erty Plaza, 20th Floor
N ew York, NY 10006
Attn: Mem orial Com petition Developm ent Consultant RFQ

Statem ents of Qualific ations m ust b e rec eive d  no later than 5:00 PM (EST), January 6, 2003.
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The current sche d ule for this RFQ e ffort is as follows:
?  Dec em b er 16, 2002 – RFQ Issued
?  January 6, 2003– Responses Due
?  January 13-17, 2003  - Oral presentations if nec essary
?  January 31, 2003 – Consultant Sele cte d

Oral Presentation

Firm s sub m itting a Statem ent of Qualific ations in response to this RFQ m ay b e required  to g ive
a n oral presentation of their Statem ent of Qualific ations to LMDC.  This will provid e an
opportunity for the firm  to clarify or ela b orate on the Statem ent of Qualific ations but will in no
way chang e the orig inal sub m ission.  LMDC’s request for an oral presentation shall not
constitute ac c eptance of a consultant.

Sub ject to annual review and  yearly approval by the LMDC Board  of Directors, the
successful firm  will b e retained  for one year with an option for LMDC to renew for one year.

2. CO N TEN T O F STATEMEN T O F QUALIFICATIO N S

Ple ase letter and  num b er your responses exa ctly as the questions are presente d  herein, and  lim it
to ten one-sid e d  pa g es, except item s A.4 and  E.1-3, which m ay b e includ e d  in a separately
b ound  append ix.

Intereste d  firm s are invited  to sub m it Statem ents of Qualific ations that contain the following
inform ation:

A. Background  and  Experience.

1. A history of the firm ’s experience in the past 5 years, includ ing  experience provid ing
consulta nt services for architectural com petitions, pub lic art and /or m em orials to
g overnm ental entities, private d evelopers, not-for-profits and  civic org a nizations.

2. A d escription of services to b e provid e d , your approach and  m ethod olog y.
3. A d escription of your org a nizational structure, includ ing  resum es of the principals and

professional staff who would  provid e m em orial com petition consulting  for LMDC projects.
4. A list of up to 5 m ajor projects for which the firm  has provid e d  consulting  services, along

with up to 2 sa mples of the work prod uce d .  Includ e the client, the na m e  of a conta ct person
who is a b le to provid e a reference, a d escription of the nature of the work, the size and
com plexity of the project, and  the am ount and  the a g re e d  on fe e arrang em ents.

5. Any other inform ation that you b e lieve would  m ake your work on b ehalf of LMDC superior
to that of other firm s.
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B. Fees and  Costs.

N O TE:  The fee proposal m ust b e sub m itted  in a separate clearly m arke d sealed  envelope.
The fee envelope will not b e opened  until all Statem ents of Qualifications have be en
initially evaluated .

Althoug h propose d  fe es will b e taken into account, LMDC reserves the rig ht to ne g otiate a
lower or d ifferent fe e structure with any firm  that is sele cte d . Ple ase d etail the following :

1. The norm al hourly rate of e a ch principal and  professional staff m em b er whose
resum e is provid e d  or whose job c ate g ory m ay b e required , and  the hourly rate you
propose to charg e.

2. Costs of any anticipate d  a d m inistrative support.
3. A sche d ule of all d isb ursem ents that you anticipate will result in a charg e a nd  the

rate of e a ch.
4. Any red uc e d  fe es charg e d  other m unicipalities, econom ic d evelopm ent or nonprofit

org anizations, and  g overnm ental entities.
5. W hether you would  b e willing  to a g ree to a c ap on fe es.
6. Any other fe es or charg es.

C. Contact Inform ation and  Personnel.

1. Le a d  firm  or ind ivid ual na m e.
2. Contact person.
3. License or certific ation inform ation of le a d  consultant principal or ind ivid ual.
4. Telephone fax and  wireless num b ers.
5. E-m ail a d d ress.
6. Street a d d ress of le a d  firm  or ind ivid ual.
7. Ye ar firm  or ind ivid ual practice was esta b lishe d .
8. Ind ic ate if MBE / WBE (Minority Business Enterprise or W om en owne d

Business, as certifie d  b y N ew York State or qualifie d  to apply).
9. The num b er of full tim e em ploye es in N ew York State.

D. Conflicts of Interest.

1. Ple ase sub m it a statem ent d escrib ing  whether provid ing  m e m orial com petition
consulting  to the LMDC would  cre ate any potential conflict of interest, or
appe arance of im propriety, relating  to other clients of the firm  or offic ers,
d irectors, and  em ployees of LMDC.

2. Ple ase ind ic ate what proce d ures will b e followe d  to d etect and  notify LMDC of,
and  resolve any conflicts of interest.

3. Ind ic ate any pend ing  litig a tion and /or re gulatory action b y any oversig ht b od y
or entity that could  have an a d verse m aterial im pa ct on the firm ’s a b ility to serve
as m em orial com petition consultants to LMDC.
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4. Ind ic ate if the firm  has ever ha d  any prior contact with a g overnm ent entity
term inate d  for any reason, and  provid e a d etaile d  explanation.

E. N on-Discrim ination Policy.   (N O TE: Does not count toward  ten page lim it.)

1. All firm s with 50 or m ore em ployees shall sub m it a copy of their
nond iscrim ination or a ffirm ative action plan.

1. All firm s with less than 50 em ployees shall sub m it a statem ent of com m itm ent to
equal opportunity and  a ffirm ative a ction execute d  b y the chief executive offic er.

2. Com plete d  Attachm ent A-1.

3. CRITERIA FOR SELECTIO N

In evaluating  Statem ents of Qualific ations sub m itted  pursuant to this request, LMDC plac es
hig h value on the following  fa ctors, not necessarily in ord er of im portance:

A. Quality of work as d e m onstrate d  throug h sub m itted  work sa mples and  results of
previous com petitions for architectural, pub lic art or m em orial projects;

B. Effe ctive presentation, writing a nd  com m unication skills as exhib ite d  in
fa cilitation of g roup d ecision-m aking ;

C. Innovative or outstand ing  work b y your firm , or approaches or m ethod olog y
which d e m onstrates your unique qualific ations;

D. N um b er, com plexity, and  nature of m em orial, architectural or pub lic art
com petition projects hand le d  b y the firm ;

E. Experience with g overnm ental entities;
F. Firm ’s sta ff sta bility and  availa b ility, and  fa cility for working  with LMDC and

other consultants;
G. Anticipate d  cost of services.

An oral presentation m ay b e required  from  the finalists and  such presentation (if required ) will
b e a rating  fa ctor.  Anticipate d  sta ff should  b e present at the oral presentation.  (Se e sche d ule
outline d  in “General Inform ation” a b ove )

4. AN TICIPATED SCO PE O F SERVICES

A. Provid e strate gic recom m end ations to LMDC
Firm s will b e expecte d  to have the experienc e and  expertise to m ake strate g ic recom m end ations to
LMDC conc erning  com petition issues, includ ing  b ut not lim ite d  to the following :

?  Ad vanta g es and  d isa d vanta g es of a one sta g e or two stag e process;
?  Lang ua g e and  g raphic requirem ents;
?  Outrea ch;
?  Sequenc e and  tim elines;
?  Interfa c e with m e d ia;
?  Interfa c e with conc erne d  constituencies.
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B. Draft com petition guid elines
Firm s will b e aske d  to d ra ft g uid elines for an open international com petition for the m em orial
at the World  Tra d e Center site to the events of Septem b er 11th, 2001.  The d ra ft g uid elines will
contain a com plete d escription for all elem ents outline d  b e low. The report should  b e in a form at
suita b le for LMDC to e d it and  a d esig ner to cre ate a pub lic ation and /or we b site d isplay and
m ay includ e the following  elem ents:

Overview
Introd uction
Ba ckg round  a nd  context

Mission Statem ent (LMDC to provid e text)
Prog ra m :

Mem orial Prog ra m  (LMDC to provid e text)
Site d escription, includ ing  m aps and  schem atic d rawing s
Site cond itions

Process:
Tim eline of d ates
Reg istration m ethod  and  proce d ure
Sub m ission form at g uid elines – requirem ents of size, type of visuals, wrapping etc.
Anonym ity
Criteria for d esig n sele ctions
Jury m em b ers
Review process for d esig n sele ction and  d evelopm ent processes

Rules:
Elig ib ility requirem ents
Reg istration requirem ents and  process
Anonym ity
Ownership and  copyrig ht
Exhibition and  pub lic ation
Disqualific ation

C. Market com petition guid elines
Firm s should  b e a b le to d ra ft a m arketing  plan with LMDC for a d vertisem ent and  d istribution
of com petition g uid elines.  The m arketing  plan should  includ e:
?  Recom m end ations for a d vertising  a nd  pub lic-service announcem ent plac em ent;
?  Strate g ies for rea ching  international and  d om estic targ et aud ienc e or participants.

D. Design and  printing of com petition guid elines
Firm s will b e aske d  to coord inate and  m ana g e the d esig n and  printing  of the com petition
g uid elines includ ing :
?  Consult with LMDC and  sub contract d esig n and  prod uction of com petition g uid eline

b ooklet (sub contra ctor qualific ations to b e reviewed  and  approve d  b y LMDC);
?  Consult with LMDC and  d ra ft specific ations for com petition g uid eline booklet;
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?  Provid e LMDC with four written b id s for d esig n and  printing  services;
?  Collect all im a g es and  text necessary for d esig n and  prod uction includ ing  procurem ent of

a ll rig hts to im a g es to b e use d  a fter LMDC approval.

E. Coord inate com petition sub m issions
Firm s will b e expecte d  to work with LMDC and  an a d m inistration consultant for sub m ission
hand ling , a d m inistration and  m ana g em ent includ ing :
?  Prepare estim ates and  b ud g et for com petition hand ling  and  a d m inistration includ ing :

(i) Sub m ission hand ling , staffing , processing, reviewing , jury presentation, d ig ital and
hard  copy archiving ;
(ii) Com petition a d vertisem ents and  m e d ia outrea ch;
(iii) Desig n, printing  and  d istribution of com petition g uid elines and  b ooklets and  d iscs;

?  Dra ft com petition re gistration policy and  proce d ures with LMDC and  a d m inistrative
consultant;

?  Develop proce d ures for a d m inistration and  archiving  of com petition sub m issions with
LMDC and  a d m inistrative consultant;

?  Dra ft proce d ural rules for review of sub m issions by selection jury;
?  Coord inate with LMDC and  a d m inistrative consultant all m e eting s for presentation of

sub m issions to selection jury, includ ing  b ut not lim ite d  to d eterm ining  jury review venue;
?  Dra ft proce d ures for non-com pliant sub m issions and  recom m end  to LMDC acc epta b le

toleranc es for b ord erline sub m ittals pursuant to form at and  content;
?  Answer and  record  questions from  com petitors re g ard ing  re g istration, sub m ission

proce d ures and  review process.

F. Consult and  ad m inistrate exhib ition of com petition selections
Firm s should  b e a b le to propose presentation form ats of com petition d esig n sele ctions
includ ing :
?  Consult with LMDC on appropriate venues for exhib iting  com petition selections;
?  Coord inate log istics for presentation includ ing  transportation and  installation at venue;
?  Dra ft sig na g e m aterials includ ing  la b e ls, explanatory text and  inform ation;
?  W ork with LMDC a d m inistrative consultant on we b-b ase d  exhib ition of com petition

selections.

G. Prod uce reports, participate in and  facilitate m eetings
Firm s will b e expecte d  to:
?  Participate in and  fa cilitate m e eting s with LMDC, its consultants, other g overnm ent

a g e ncies, and  other intereste d  parties;
?  Attend  pub lic m e eting s and  he aring s, m ake presentations and /or respond  to com m ents

where appropriate;
?  Prod uce com plete reports as m ay b e appropriate und er applic a ble law.   (LMDC m ay

consid er firm s that specialize only in one or m ore, but not all, cate g ories of com petition
consultant services.  Firm s should  specify in their Statem ent of Qualific ations in which such
c ate g ory or cate g ories they specialize.)
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5. AN TICIPATED SCHEDULE OF DELIVERABLES

If selecte d , the firm  will b e expecte d  to d eliver to LMDC the following :
Fe bruary 21 Dra ft of reg istration and  com petition g uid elines
Fe bruary 28 Report on cost estim ates for com petition
M arch 7 M arketing  report
March - May Reg istration and  sub m ission hand ling  with LMDC and  consultant
M ay - June Sub m ission hand ling  and  review process
July - Septem b er Exhibition proposal

6. CO N TRACT REQUIREMENTS

Sele cte d  firm s will b e required  to enter into a form al contra ct with LMDC that will includ e the
term s and  cond itions set forth in Sche d ule A to this RFQ, sub ject to applic a bility and
a m e nd m ent.  The contents of the proposal prepare d  b y the selecte d  firm s, with any
a m e nd m ents approve d  b y LMDC, will b e com e a part of the contract award e d  a s a result of this
RFQ process.

The selecte d  firm s will b e required  to:

?  W ork with LMDC and  its consultants to provid e m em orial com petition consultant services
to LMDC on m atters that m ay arise in connection with the planning , d evelopm ent,
a d m inistration and  m ana g em ent of a  m e m orial com petition.

?  M aintain accurate accounting  record s and  other evid ence pertaining  to costs incurred  in
provid ing  services, and  on LMDC request, m ake such record s availa b le to LMDC at all
re asona b le tim es d uring  the contra ct period  a nd  for six (6) ye ars a fter the d ate of the final
paym ent to the firm s und er the contract.

?  Assum e sole responsibility for the com plete effort as required  b y this RFQ, and  b e the sole
point of contact with re g ard  to contra ctual m atters.

?  Refrain from  assig ning , transferring , conveying , sub letting  or otherwise d isposing  of the
contract or its rig hts, titles or interest therein or its power to execute such a g re em ent to any
other person, firm , partnership, com pany, or corporation without the prior consent and
approval in writing  of LMDC.

?  Com ply with applic a b le law governing  projects initiate d  or supported  b y LMDC, includ ing
a ll applic a b le HUD requirem ents and  re g ulations.

LMDC m ay hire more than one firm  that respond s to this RFQ.  LMDC has no preferenc e that
all services b e provid ed  b y the sa m e firm  and  firm s m ay choose to sub m it Statem ents of
Qualific ations to provid e less than all of the anticipate d  scope of services.  Respond ing  firm s
m ust specify which services they are proposing  to provid e.  LMDC will review all proposals
without prejud ice re g a rd ing  which services are propose d .
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As set forth in Sche d ule A, LMDC m ay term inate any contra ct entere d  into as a result of this
RFQ at any tim e, provid e d  that written notice has b e e n g iven to the firm  at le ast thirty (30) d ays
prior to such propose d  term ination d ate.

7. MISCELLANEOUS CO NDITIO N S

The issuance of this RFQ and  the sub m ission of a response by any proposing  firm s or the
a c c eptance of such response by LMDC d o not ob lig ate LMDC in any m anner.  Le g al ob lig a tions
will only arise on the execution of a form al contract b y LMDC and  the firm s selecte d  b y LMDC.

LMDC reserves the rig ht (i) to a m e nd , m od ify, or withd raw this RFQ, (ii) to revise any
requirem ents of this RFQ, (iii) to require supplem ental statem ents or inform ation from  any firm ,
(iv) to ac c ept or reje ct any or all responses hereto, (v) to extend  the d e a d line for sub m ission of
responses thereto, (vi) to neg otiate or hold  d iscussions with any firm  and  to waive d efe cts and
a llow corrections of d eficient responses which d o not com pletely conform  to the instructions
containe d  herein, and  (vii) to c ancel this RFQ, in whole or in part, if LMDC d e em s it in its b est
interest to d o so.  LMDC m ay exercise the fore g oing  rig hts at any tim e without notice and
without lia b ility to any firm  or any other party for their expenses incurred  in the preparation of
the responses hereto or otherwise.  Responses to this RFQ will b e prepare d  at the sole cost and
expense of the firm s.  No copies of m aterials sub m itted  in response to this RFQ will b e returne d .

8. LMDC N O NDISCRIMINATIO N  AFFIRMATIVE ACTIO N  POLICIES

It is the policy of the State of N ew York, and  the LMDC, to com ply with all fe d eral, State and
loc al laws, policies, ord ers, rules and  reg ulations which prohib it unlawful d iscrim ination
b e c ause of rac e, cre e d , color, national orig in, sex, sexual orientation, a g e, d isa b ility or m arital
status, and  to take a ffirm ative action in working  with contracting  parties to ensure that Minority
and  W om en-owne d  Business Enterprises (“M/W BEs”), Minority Group Mem b ers and  wom en
share in the econom ic opportunities g enerate d  b y LMDC’s participation in projects or
initiatives, and /or the use of LMDC fund s.  LMDC is a subsid iary of the Em pire State
Developm ent Corporation (“ESDC”) and  its non-d iscrim ination and  a ffirm ative action policy
will apply to this contract.  LMDC has esta b lishe d  a 20%  M /W BE participation g oal for the
entire re d evelopm ent project.  The sele cte d  consultant shall b e required  to use its b est efforts to
provid e for the m e aning ful participation of Am erican M/W BEs, Minority Group Mem b ers and
wom en in the execution of this contract.  A copy of e a ch respond ent’s equal em ploym ent
opportunity policy statem ent, Sta ffing  Plan (Attachm ent A-1) of the anticipate d  workforce to b e
utilize d  on the contract and  Sche d ule of Minority and  W om en-owne d  Business Participation
(Attachm ent A-2), shall b e includ e d  as part of the response to the RFQ.  The ESDC Affirm ative
Action Unit (“AAU”) is availa b le to assist you in id entifying N ew York State c ertifie d  M /W BEs
that c an provid e g ood s and  services in connection with the contra ct.  If you require M/W BE
listing s, ple ase call the AAU at (212) 803-3224.



ATTACHMENT A-1

STAFFING PLAN

 Project/RFP Title                                                                      Location of Contract                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                                County Zip
Contractor/Firm Name                                                                                  Address                                                                                            

City State Zip
Check applicable categories:   (1) Staff Estimates include: ( ) Contract/Project Staff          ( ) Total Workforce  ( )  Subcontractors
                                                    (2) Type of Contract: ( ) Construction Consultants    ( ) Commodities        ( )  Services/Consultants

TOTAL ANTICIPATED WORK FORCE
Total Number of

Employees
Black (Not of

Hispanic Origin
Hispanic Asian or Pacific

Islander
Native American
Alaskan Native

Federal
Occupational

Category Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female

Total
Percent

Minority
Employees

Total
Percent
Female

Employees

Officials/
Admin.

Professionals

Technicians

Sales
Workers

Office &
Clerical

Craft
Workers

Operatives

Laborers

Service
Workers

TOTALS

CERTIFICATION:

I,                                                                                           (Print Name), the                                                                   (Title),
do certify that (i) I have read this Staffing Plan and (ii) to the best of my knowledge, information and belief
the information herein is complete and accurate.

Signature                                                                                     Date                        Telephone Number    (        )                             



CONTRACTORS STAFFING PLAN
Instructions for Completion

PURPOSE:
The Contractors Staffing Plan is prepared by all contractors providing good, products and merchandise, or services (skilled
and non-skilled) or professional consulting services (inclusive of professional construction consultant services) to a state
agency.  The plan is required prior to the award of a contract and contains the anticipated staff assignments during the
contract.  In instances where that cannot be identified, the contractor may identify the total work force of the
company.  The form will be reviewed by state agencies for the purposes of equal employment opportunity requirements.

GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Project/RFP Title:  describe the project for which you are competing as indicated on the RFP/RFB document.
2. Location of Contract:  the company’s location and postal zip code.
3. Contractor/Firm Name:  the company that will be providing workforce.  Include address, city name, state and zip code.
4. Check applicable categories:

(1) Staff Estimated include:  Contract/Project Staff (check in cases where the workers to be assigned can be determined,
Total Work Force (check in the event the contract work force cannot yet be determined, Subcontractors (check if the work
force for the project is that of a subcontractor).

(2) Type of Contract:  Construction Consultants, Commodities, Services/Consultants (check appropriate box).

TOTAL ANTICIPATED WORK FORCE:
1. Federal Occupational Category:  The contractor’s work force is broken down and reported by the nine Federal
Occupational Categories (FOC’s) consistent with the Federal government’s EEO-1 categories for the private sector labor
force.  The categories are general in nature, and include all related occupational job titles. The contracting agency can provide
assistance in categorizing specific jobs.
2. Total Number of Employees:  Record the total number of all persons employed in each FOC regardless of ethnicity
(either to be assigned to the contract/project staff OR in the company’s total work force, as indicated by the categories
selected in number 4 (1) Staff Estimated, of the General Information.  Report the number of male employees in column (1),
and the total number of female employees in column (2) for each FOC.  In columns (3) through (10), report the number of
male and female minority group member, based on the following defined groups:

Black (not of Hispanic origin):  all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups.

Hispanic:  all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Dominican, Cuban, Central or South American or either Indian or Hispanic
origin, regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander:  all persons having origins in any of the Far East countries, South East Asia, the Indian
subcontinent or the Pacific Islands.

Native American or Alaskan Native:  all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America.

TOTAL PERCENT MINORITY:
Add all minority group members (male and female) columns (3) through (10), divide by the total numbers of all employees in
that FOC (columns 1 + 2).  Post the percentage result for that FOC. [Total number of minority employees (columns 3 thru 10)
Total number of employees (columns 1 and 2)].

TOTAL PERCENT FEMALE:
Divide the number of female employees (column 2) in the FOC, by the total number of both Male and Female (column 1+2).
Post the percentage result for that FOC. [Total female employees (column 2). Total number of employees (columns 1 and 2)].

TOTALS:
To compute the column totals, add vertically.  Total Percent Minority Employees and Total Percent Female Employees
should be calculated as shown above, using the summed column totals.

The Contractors Staffing Plan is to be completed by the prime contractor and signed and dated by an authorized
representative before submission.  The Company Official’s Name, Title, Telephone Number, Signature and Date signed
should be provided where indicated on the form.



ATTACHMEN T A-2
MBE/WBE COMPLIANCE REPORT

NON-CONSTRUCTION
(to be filed quarterly)

PROJECT SPONSOR/DEVELOPER:                                                                                               ESD AA REPRESENTATIVE:
POOLE

ADDRESS:                                                                                            PROJECT NAME:                                           

TELEPHONE:                                                                                            PROJECT START DATE:                                              PERCENT COMPLETE:

CONTACT PERSON:                                                                                  ACTUAL COMPLETION:

TOTAL NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTORS:                                                Attach M/WBE contract documentation, i.e.  executed contracts, signed purchase orders or canceled checks.

TOTAL DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SUBCONTRACTS:                                       This report should be completed by an officer of the reporting company, and forwarded to the ESD 
AA Representative with the appropriate documentation.

PRIME CONTRACTOR
(Name, Address, Contact Person and
Phone)

TYPE OF
CONTRACT
(Trade/Service)

CONTRACT
AMOUNT

M/WBE
SUBCONTR
ACT DATE

MBE/WBE SUBCONSULTANT
(Name, Address, Contact Person and Phone)

  CERTIFICATION:
I,                                                                                                                             (Print Name), the                                                                                           
have read this Compliance Report and (ii) to the best of my knowledge, information and belief the information contained herein is complete and accurate.

SIGNATURE                                                                                                                         DATE                                                           
Forward to:

Empire State Development
Affirmative Action Unit - Laverne Poole
633 Third Avenue
New York, NY 10017-6754 Office: (212) 803-3224 Fax: (212) 803-3223


